
The recommended actions will cancel the current lease agreements with DC Golf, Inc., and award 
five-year Lease Agreements to O & J Management, for the management, operation, and 
maintenance of the Altadena and Eaton Canyon Golf Courses.  Both actions will ensure that the 
facilities remain open and available to the public.

SUBJECT

October 16, 2012

The Honorable Board of Supervisors
County of Los Angeles
383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration
500 West Temple Street 
Los Angeles, California 90012
 
Dear Supervisors:

CANCELLATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER 48724, 
ALTADENA COUNTY GOLF COURSE.

CANCELLATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER 48725, 
EATON CANYON COUNTY GOLF COURSE.

APPROVAL OF LEASE AGREEMENTS FOR THE MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF THE 
ALTADENA GOLF COURSE AND EATON CANYON GOLF COURSE

(SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT 5) (3-VOTES)

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:

1. Find that the proposed cancellation of the current Lease Agreements with DC Golf, Inc. is not 
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act as the action does not meet the definition of a 
project.

2. Find that the proposed approval of Lease Agreements with O & J Management are categorically 
exempt from California Environmental Quality Act because the agreements involve leasing of 
existing facilities with negligible or no expansion of existing use for the reasons stated herein and the 
reasons reflected in the record of the project.
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3. Approve and instruct the Director of the Department of Parks and Recreation to cancel the current 
lease agreements with DC Golf, Inc. for the management, operation and maintenance of the 
Altadena and Eaton Canyon Golf Courses, effective October 31, 2012.

4.  Approve and instruct the Director of the Department of Parks and Recreation to execute five year 
Lease Agreements with O & J Management for the management, operation and maintenance of the 
Altadena and Eaton Canyon Golf Courses, effective November 1, 2012, which shall result in a 
combined, estimated $775,000 in rent revenues to the Department of Parks and Recreation’s 
Operating Budget, over the recommended five year terms. 

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approval of the recommended actions will allow the Altadena County Golf Course and Eaton Canyon 
County Golf Course (Golf Courses) to remain open for continued and uninterrupted service to the 
public, by cancelling the current contract with DC Golf, and authorizing the award of five year Lease 
Agreements with O & J Management (O & J).

The current lease agreements with DC Golf expire on November 30, 2014; however, DC Golf is 
currently delinquent in its rent obligations to the Department of Parks and Recreation (Department).  
Accordingly, the Department is considering various options in order to collect back rent due to the 
County.

On September 26, 2011, the Department issued a ten day “Notice of Default” to DC Golf for the Golf 
Courses.  On September 24, 2012, the Department notified DC Golf that the Department is 
cancelling the lease agreements between the County and DC Golf.  The Department, in order to 
avoid Golf Course closures, missed opportunities for revenues, deterioration of facilities, and, in 
order to maintain continued and uninterrupted service to the public, recommends that O & J 
commence their management and operation of the Golf Courses on November 1, 2012.
 
O & J was the highest ranked bidder for the management, operation and maintenance of the Golf 
Courses.  The recommended term for the Lease Agreements with O & J is five years.  The attached 
chart delineates the five year rental fee schedules (Attachment I).  A portion of the rental fee 
revenues will be deposited into a capital improvement project fund, to be used for improvements at 
the Golf Courses.  The remaining amount will be deposited into the Department’s Operating Budget 
to fund ongoing operations.

Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals
The proposed Lease Agreements will further the County’s Strategic Plan of Operational 
Effectiveness (Goal 1) by maximizing the effectiveness of process, structure, and operations to 
support timely delivery of customer-oriented and efficient public service and; Fiscal Sustainability 
(Goal 2) by strengthening and enhancing the County’s capacity to sustain essential County services 
through proactive and prudent fiscal policies and stewardship.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

Your Board’s approval of the recommended actions will result in additional benefit to the County, in 
the form of rental fees.  Based on the terms of the Lease Agreement, it is estimated that the 
Department will realize golf course revenues, totaling $350,000 for the Altadena Golf Course and 
$425,000 for the Eaton Canyon Golf Course over the recommended five year term.  This revenue 
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will be collected on a monthly basis, based on the 60 month rental fee schedule.  The Department 
does not anticipate any operating cost increase resulting from the Lease Agreement. 

OPERATING BUDGET IMPACT

Based on the terms of the recommended Lease Agreement, the Department will realize estimated 
rent revenues of $45,000 at the Altadena Golf Course and $55,000 at the Eaton Canyon Golf Course 
in FY 2012-13 (8 Months).  However, the Department does not anticipate any changes in its FY 2012
-13 Operating Budget.  The estimated rent revenues from the recommended Lease Agreement is 
consistent with the Department’s existing revenue budget.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

The Board is authorized by the provision of Government Code Section 25907 to lease County park 
and recreation real property for the provision of services and property improvements that are 
consistent with public park and recreation purposes.  The proposed Lease Agreements are 
consistent with said purposes.

The term of the Lease Agreements with O & J Management, is for five years for each Agreement.

These Lease Agreements contain terms and conditions supporting your Board’s ordinances, 
policies, and programs, including but not limited to: Reporting of Improper Solicitations, Board Policy 
No. 5.060; Notice to Contract Employees of Newborn Abandonment Law (Safely Surrendered Baby 
Law), Board Policy No. 5.135; Contractor Responsibility and Debarment, Los Angeles County Code 
Chapter 2.202; the Los Angeles County’s Child Support Compliance Program, Los Angeles County 
Code, Chapter 2.200; the Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program, Los Angeles County Code 
2.206; compliance with the County’s smoking ban ordinance, Los Angeles County Code Title 17, 
Sections 17.04.185 through 17.04.650; compliance with the County’s policy on restricting its 
purchase and use of Expanded Polystyrene containers; participation in the County’s Artificial Trans 
Fat Reduction Program; and the standard Board-directed clauses that provide for contract 
termination or renegotiation.

County Counsel has approved the Lease Agreements as to form.

ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION

The proposed cancellation of the current Lease Agreements is not subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as the action does not meet the definition of a project according 
to Section 15378 (b)(5) of the State CEQA Guidelines, because the action is an administrative 
activity which will not involve any commitments to any specific projects which may result in a 
potentially significant physical impact on the environment.   

The proposed approval of the Altadena and Eaton Canyon Golf Course Lease Agreements with O & 
J Management is categorically exempt from CEQA according to Section 15301 of the State CEQA 
Guidelines and Class 1 (r) of the County’s Environmental Documentation Reporting Procedures and 
Guidelines, Appendix G, because the agreement involves leasing of an existing facility with 
negligible or no expansion of existing use.
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CONTRACTING PROCESS

On April 23, 2012, the Department issued an Information For Bid (IFB) for the management, 
operation and maintenance of the Altadena and Eaton Canyon Golf Courses by posting the IFB on 
the County’s “Doing Business with Us” website. The website included a link to download the 
solicitation package and bilingual instructions on how to contact the Department regarding this 
solicitation.

On May 8, 2012, a mandatory Proposers Conference was held and fourteen (14) potential proposers 
attended. A facility walk-through of the facility followed the conference.

On June 5, 2012, the Department received four (4) proposals.  The proposals were reviewed by the 
Department’s staff to ensure compliance with mandatory minimum requirements outlined in the RFP. 
  

All bids were scored and ranked in numerical sequence from high to low based on the proposed rent 
to be paid the county throughout the term. The most responsive, responsible and highest bidder was 
selected as the recommended lessee for the Golf Courses. The firms that proposed and their rank in 
the scoring are:

1.     O & J Management
2.     Touchstone Golf Management
3.     Billy Casper Golf Management
4.     Golf Links Golf Management

It should be noted that upon final analysis and award, O & J Management was selected without 
regard to gender, race, creed, or color.  Proposer’s minority participation is reflected as an 
attachment (Attachment II).

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)

There will be no impact on current public services.

CONCLUSION

It is requested that an adopted copy of the action taken by the Board, and a fully executed copy of 
the attached Lease Agreement be mailed to: O & J Management, Attention: Juan R. Garcia, 
President, 24951 Dracaea Avenue, Moreno Valley, Ca. 92553.  In addition, it is requested that one 
adopted copy be sent to the Treasurer and Tax Collector, one adopted copy be sent to the Assessor, 
and three adopted copies be forwarded to the Department of Parks and Recreation.
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RUSS GUINEY

Director

Enclosures

c: Chief Executive Officer
County Counsel
Executive Officer, Board of Supervisors

Respectfully submitted,

RG:RM:KEH
JB:MG:rc
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